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PROHIBITIONS Employers are generally prohibited from requiring or requesting 
any employee or job applicant to take a lie detector test, and from 
discharging, disciplining, or discriminating against an employee or 
prospective employee for refusing to take a test or for exercising other 
rights under the Act. 

EXEMPTIONS Federal, State and local governments are not affected by the law. Also, 
the law does not apply to tests given by the Federal Government to 
certain private individuals engaged in national security-related activities.

The Act permits polygraph (a kind of lie detector) tests to be administered 
in the private sector, subject to restrictions, to certain prospective 

of pharmaceutical manufacturers, distributors and dispensers.

The Act also permits polygraph testing, subject to restrictions, of certain 

in a workplace incident (theft, embezzlement, etc.) that resulted in 
economic loss to the employer.

The law does not preempt any provision of any State or local law or any 
collective bargaining agreement which is more restrictive with respect to 
lie detector tests.

EXAMINEE 
RIGHTS

Where polygraph tests are permitted, they are subject to numerous strict 
standards concerning the conduct and length of the test. Examinees 

before testing, the right to refuse or discontinue a test, and the right not 
to have test results disclosed to unauthorized persons.

ENFORCEMENT The Secretary of Labor may bring court actions to restrain violations and 
assess civil penalties against violators. Employees or job applicants may 
also bring their own court actions.

EMPLOYEE RIGHTS 
EMPLOYEE POLYGRAPH PROTECTION ACT
The Employee Polygraph Protection Act 
prohibits most private employers from using 
lie detector tests either for pre-employment 
screening or during the course of employment.

THE LAW REQUIRES EMPLOYERS TO DISPLAY THIS POSTER 
WHERE EMPLOYEES AND JOB APPLICANTS CAN READILY SEE IT. 
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PROHIBICIONES Generalmente se le prohíbe al empleador que le exija o requiera a un 
empleado o a un solicitante a un trabajo que se someta a una prueba 
con detector de mentiras, y que despida, discipline, o discrimine de 
ninguna forma contra un empleado o contra un aspirante a un trabajo por 
haberse negado a someterse a la prueba o por haberse acogido a otros 
derechos establecidos por la Ley.

EXENCIONES Esta Ley no afecta a los empleados de los gobiernos federal, estatales 
y locales. Tampoco se aplica a las pruebas que el Gobierno Federal 
les administra a ciertos individuos del sector privado que trabajan en 
actividades relacionadas con la seguridad nacional.

La Ley permite la administración de pruebas de polígrafo (un tipo de 
detector de mentiras) en el sector privado, sujeta a ciertas restricciones, 
a ciertos aspirantes para empleos en compañías de seguridad (vehículos 
blindados, sistemas de alarma y guardias). También se les permite el uso 
de éstas a compañías que fabrican, distribuyen y dispensan productos 
farmacéuticos.

La Ley también permite la administración de estas pruebas de polígrafo, 
sujeta a ciertas restricciones, a empleados de empresas privadas que 
estén bajo sospecha razonable de estar involucrados en un incidente 
en el sitio de empleo (tal como un robo, desfalco, etc.) que le haya 
ocasionado daños económicos al empleador.

La Ley no substituye ninguna provisión de cualquier otra ley estatal 
o local ni tampoco a tratos colectivos que sean más rigurosos con
respecto a las pruebas de polígrafo.

DERECHOS 
DE LOS 
EXAMINADOS

En casos en que se permitan las pruebas de polígrafo, éstas deben 
ser administradas bajo una cantidad de normas estrictas en cuanto a 
su administración y duración. Los examinados tienen un número de 
derechos específicos, incluyendo el derecho de advertencia por escrito 
antes de someterse a la prueba, el derecho a negarse a someterse a la 
prueba o a descontinuarla, al igual que el derecho a negarse a que los 
resultados de la prueba estén al alcance de personas no autorizadas

CUMPLIMIENTO El/La Secretario(a) de Trabajo puede entablar pleitos para impedir 
violaciones y puede imponer penas pecuniarias civiles contra los 
violadores. Los empleados o solicitantes a empleo también tienen 
derecho a entablar sus propios pleitos en los tribunales.

DERECHOS DEL EMPLEADO
LEY PARA LA PROTECCIÓN DEL EMPLEADO 

CONTRA LA PRUEBA DEL POLÍGRAFO
La Ley Para La Protección del Empleado contra la 
Prueba de Polígrafo le prohíbe a la mayoría de los 
empleadores del sector privado que utilice pruebas 
con detectores de mentiras durante el período 
de pre-empleo o durante el servicio de empleo.

LA LEY EXIGE QUE LOS EMPLEADORES EXHIBAN ESTE AVISO DONDE LOS 
EMPLEADOS Y LOS SOLICITANTES DE EMPLEO LO PUEDAN VER FÁCILMENTE.
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EMPLOYEE RIGHTS
UNDER THE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT

Eligible employees who work for a covered employer can take up to 12 weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave in a 12-month period 
for the following reasons:

The birth of a child or placement of a child for adoption or foster care;
To bond with a child (leave must be taken within 1 year of the child’s birth or placement);
To care for the employee’s spouse, child, or parent who has a qualifying serious health condition;
For the employee’s own qualifying serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the employee’s job;
For qualifying exigencies related to the foreign deployment of a military member who is the employee’s spouse, 
child, or parent.

An eligible employee who is a covered servicemember’s spouse, child, parent, or next of kin may also take up to 26 weeks 
of FMLA leave in a single 12-month period to care for the servicemember with a serious injury or illness. 

An employee does not need to use leave in one block. When it is medically necessary or otherwise permitted, employees 
may take leave intermittently or on a reduced schedule. 

Employees may choose, or an employer may require, use of accrued paid leave while taking FMLA leave. If an employee 
substitutes accrued paid leave for FMLA leave, the employee must comply with the employer’s normal paid leave policies.

While employees are on FMLA leave, employers must continue health insurance coverage as if the employees were not on leave. 

Upon return from FMLA leave, most employees must be restored to the same job or one nearly identical to it with 

An employer may not interfere with an individual’s FMLA rights or retaliate against someone for using or trying to use FMLA leave, 
opposing any practice made unlawful by the FMLA, or being involved in any proceeding under or related to the FMLA.  

An employee who works for a covered employer must meet three criteria in order to be eligible for FMLA leave. The employee must: 

Have worked for the employer for at least 12 months; 
Have at least 1,250 hours of service in the 12 months before taking leave;* and 
Work at a location where the employer has at least 50 employees within 75 miles of the employee’s worksite. 

Generally, employees must give 30-days’ advance notice of the need for FMLA leave. If it is not possible to give 30-days’ notice, 
an employee must notify the employer as soon as possible and, generally, follow the employer’s usual procedures. 

Employees do not have to share a medical diagnosis, but must provide enough information to the employer so it can determine 

will be unable to perform his or her job functions, that a family member cannot perform daily activities, or that hospitalization or 
continuing medical treatment is necessary. Employees must inform the employer if the need for leave is for a reason for which 

Once an employer becomes aware that an employee’s need for leave is for a reason that may qualify under the FMLA, the 
employer must notify the employee if he or she is eligible for FMLA leave and, if eligible, must also provide a notice of rights and 
responsibilities under the FMLA. If the employee is not eligible, the employer must provide a reason for ineligibility.

Employers must notify its employees if leave will be designated as FMLA leave, and if so, how much leave will be designated as 
FMLA leave.    

against an employer.

The FMLA does not affect any federal or state law prohibiting discrimination or supersede any state or local law or collective 
bargaining agreement that provides greater family or medical leave rights.

LEAVE 
ENTITLEMENTS

BENEFITS &
PROTECTIONS

ELIGIBILITY  
REQUIREMENTS

1-866-4-USWAGE
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For additional information or to file a complaint:

(1-866-487-9243)     TTY: 1-877-889-5627

U.S. Department of Labor     Wage and Hour Division
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ENFORCEMENT 



DERECHOS DEL EMPLEADO
SEGÚN LA LEY DE AUSENCIA FAMILIAR Y MÉDICA

1-866-4-USWAGE

www.dol.gov/whd

Para información adicional o para presentar un reclamo:

(1-866-487-9243)     TTY: 1-877-889-5627

Departamento de Trabajo de los EE.UU. | División de Horas y Salarios

 DIVISIÓN DE HORAS Y SALARIOS DEL DEPARTAMENTO DE EE. UU.
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DE LOS DERECHOS  
DE LA LICENCIA

Los empleados elegibles que trabajan para un empleador sujeto a esta ley pueden tomarse hasta 12 semanas de 
licencia sin sueldo sin perder su empleo por las siguientes razones:

El nacimiento de un hijo o la colocación de un hijo en adopción o en hogar de crianza;
Para establecer lazos afectivos con un niño (la licencia debe ser tomada dentro del primer año del nacimiento o 
la colocación del niño);

pueda realizar su trabajo;

cónyuge del empleado, hijo o padre.

Un empleado elegible que es cónyuge, hijo, padre o familiar más cercano del miembro de las fuerzas armadas que 
está cubierto, puede tomarse hasta 26 semanas de licencia bajo la Ley de Ausencia Familiar y Médica (FMLA, por sus 
siglas en inglés) en un periodo de 12 meses para cuidar al miembro de las fuerzas armadas que tenga una lesión o 
enfermedad seria.

Un empleado no tiene que tomarse la licencia de una sola vez. Cuando es medicamente necesario o de otra manera 
permitido, los empleados pueden tomarse la licencia de forma intermitente o en una jornada reducida.

Los empleados pueden elegir, o un empleador puede exigir, el uso de licencias pagadas acumuladas mientras se 
toman la licencia bajo la FMLA. Si un empleado sustituye la licencia pagada acumulada por la licencia bajo la FMLA, el 
empleado tiene que respetar las políticas de pago de licencias normales del empleador.

BENEFICIOS Y  
PROTECCIONES

Mientras los empleados estén de licencia bajo la FMLA, los empleadores tienen que continuar con la cobertura del 
seguro de salud como si los empleados no estuvieran de licencia.

Después de regresar de la licencia bajo la FMLA, a la mayoría de los empleados se les tiene que restablecer el mismo 

Un empleador no puede interferir con los derechos de la FMLA de un individuo o tomar represalias contra alguien por 
usar o tratar de usar la licencia bajo la FMLA, oponerse a cualquier práctica ilegal hecha por la FMLA, o estar involucrado 
en un procedimiento según o relacionado con la FMLA.

REQUISITOS  
DE ELEGIBILIDAD

Un empleado que trabaja para un empleador cubierto tiene que cumplir con tres criterios para poder ser elegible para 
una licencia bajo la FMLA. El empleado tiene que:

Haber trabajado para el empleador por lo menos 12 meses;
Tener por lo menos 1,250 horas de servicio en los 12 meses previos a tomar la licencia*; y
Trabajar en el lugar donde el empleador tiene al menos 50 empleados 
dentro de 75 millas del lugar de trabajo del empleado.

*Requisitos especiales de “horas de servicio” se aplican a empleados de una tripulación de una aerolínea.

PEDIDO DE LA 
LICENCIA

En general, los empleados tienen que pedir la licencia necesaria bajo la FMLA con 30 días de anticipación. Si no es posible 

los procedimientos usuales del empleador.

informarle al empleador que el empleado está o estará incapacitado para realizar sus funciones laborales, que un miembro 
de la familia no puede realizar las actividades diarias, o que una hospitalización o un tratamiento médico es necesario. Los 
empleados tienen que informar al empleador si la necesidad de la ausencia es por una razón por la cual la licencia bajo la 

información adicional se requiere.

RESPONSABILIDADES 
DEL EMPLEADOR 

Una vez que el empleador tome conocimiento que la necesidad de la ausencia del empleado es por una razón que puede 

elegible, también tiene que proporcionar un aviso de los derechos y las responsabilidades según la FMLA. Si el empleado no es 
elegible, el empleador tiene que brindar una razón por la cual no es elegible.

cuánta ausencia será designada como licencia bajo la FMLA.

CUMPLIMIENTO Los empleados pueden presentar un reclamo ante el Departamento de Los empleados Los Los empleados pueden presentar 
un reclamo ante el Departamento de Trabajo de EE. UU., la División de Horas y Salarios, o pueden presentar una demanda 
privada contra un empleador.

La FMLA no afecta a ninguna ley federal o estatal que prohíba la discriminación ni sustituye a ninguna ley estatal o local o 
convenio colectivo de negociación que proporcione mayores derechos de ausencias familiares o médicas.



Know Your Rights:
Workplace Discrimination is Illegal

The U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) enforces Federal laws that protect you from  
discrimination in employment. If you believe you’ve been discriminated against at work or in applying for 
a job, the EEOC may be able to help.

Who is Protected? 
•  Employees (current and

former), including managers
and temporary employees

• Job applicants

•  Union members and
applicants for membership
in a union

What Types of Employment Discrimination 
are Illegal? 
Under the EEOC’s laws, an employer may not discriminate against 
you, regardless of your immigration status, on the bases of:
•  Race
• Color
• Religion
• National origin
•  Sex (including pregnancy,

childbirth, and related medical
conditions, sexual orientation,
or gender identity)

• Age (40 and older)
• Disability
•  Genetic information

(including employer requests
for, or purchase, use, or

disclosure of genetic tests, 
genetic services, or family  
medical history)

•  Retaliation for filing a
charge, reasonably
opposing discrimination,
or participating in a
discrimination lawsuit,
investigation, or proceeding

•  Interference, coercion, or
threats related to exercising
rights regarding disability
discrimination or pregnancy
accommodation

What Organizations are Covered?
•   Most private employers
•  State and local governments

(as employers)

•  Educational institutions
(as employers)

• Unions
• Staffing agencies

What Employment Practices can be Challenged 
as Discriminatory?
All aspects of employment, including:
• Discharge, firing, or lay-off
•  Harassment (including

unwelcome verbal or
physical conduct)

• Hiring or promotion
• Assignment
•  Pay (unequal wages or

compensation)
•  Failure to provide

reasonable accommodation
for a disability; pregnancy,
childbirth, or related medical
condition; or a sincerely-held
religious belief, observance
or practice

• Benefits
• Job training
• Classification
• Referral

•  Obtaining or disclosing
genetic information of
employees

•  Requesting or disclosing medical
information of employees

•  Conduct that might reasonably
discourage someone from
opposing discrimination, filing
a charge, or participating in an 
investigation or proceeding

•  Conduct that coerces,
intimidates, threatens, or
interferes with someone
exercising their rights, or
someone assisting or
encouraging someone else
to exercise rights, regarding
disability discrimination
(including accommodation)
or pregnancy accommodation

What can You Do if You Believe Discrimination has Occurred?
Contact the EEOC promptly if you suspect discrimination. Do not delay, because there are strict time limits for filing a charge of 
discrimination (180 or 300 days, depending on where you live/work). You can reach the EEOC in any of the following ways:

Submit    an inquiry through the EEOC’s public portal: 
https://publicportal.eeoc.gov/Portal/Login.aspx 

Call 1–800–669–4000 (toll free)  
1–800–669–6820 (TTY)  
1–844–234–5122 (ASL video phone)

Visit   an EEOC field office (information at  
www.eeoc.gov/field-office)  

E-Mail info@eeoc.gov

Additional information about the EEOC,  
including information about filing a charge of 
discrimination, is available at www.eeoc.gov.



EMPLOYERS HOLDING FEDERAL CONTRACTS OR SUBCONTRACTS

The Department of Labor’s Office of Federal Contract  
Compliance Programs (OFCCP) enforces the nondiscrimination 
and affirmative action commitments of companies doing business 
with the Federal Government. If you are applying for a job with,  
or are an employee of, a company with a Federal contract or  
subcontract, you are protected under Federal law from  
discrimination on the following bases:

Race, Color, Religion, Sex, Sexual Orientation, 
Gender Identity, National Origin 
Executive Order 11246, as amended, prohibits employment  
discrimination by Federal contractors based on race, color,  
religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national 
origin, and requires affirmative action to ensure equality of  
opportunity in all aspects of employment.

Asking About, Disclosing, or Discussing Pay
Executive Order 11246, as amended, protects applicants and 
employees of Federal contractors from discrimination based on 
inquiring about, disclosing, or discussing their compensation or 
the compensation of other applicants or employees.

Disability 
Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended,  
protects qualified individuals with disabilities from discrimination 
in hiring, promotion, discharge, pay, fringe benefits, job  
training, classification, referral, and other aspects of employment 
by Federal contractors. Disability discrimination includes not  
making reasonable accommodation to the known physical or 
mental limitations of an otherwise qualified individual with a  
disability who is an applicant or employee, barring undue  
hardship to the employer. Section 503 also requires that  
Federal contractors take affirmative action to employ and  
advance in employment qualified individuals with disabilities  
at all levels of employment, including the executive level. 

Protected Veteran Status
The Vietnam Era Veterans’ Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, 
as amended, 38 U.S.C. 4212, prohibits employment discrimination 
against, and requires affirmative action to recruit, employ, and 
advance in employment, disabled veterans, recently separated 
veterans (i.e., within three years of discharge or release from 
active duty), active duty wartime or campaign badge veterans,  
or Armed Forces service medal veterans.

Retaliation
Retaliation is prohibited against a person who files a complaint  
of discrimination, participates in an OFCCP proceeding, or  
otherwise opposes discrimination by Federal contractors  
under these Federal laws.

Any person who believes a contractor has violated its  
nondiscrimination or affirmative action obligations under  
OFCCP’s authorities should contact immediately:

The Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP) 
U.S. Department of Labor 
200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20210  
1–800–397–6251 (toll-free)

If you are deaf, hard of hearing, or have a speech disability, please dial 
7–1–1 to access telecommunications relay services. OFCCP may also 
be contacted by submitting a question online to OFCCP’s Help Desk  
at https://ofccphelpdesk.dol.gov/s/, or by calling an OFCCP regional  
or district office, listed in most telephone directories under U.S. 
Government, Department of Labor and on OFCCP’s “Contact Us” 
webpage at https://www.dol.gov/agencies/ofccp/contact.

PROGRAMS OR ACTIVITIES RECEIVING FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Race, Color, National Origin, Sex
In addition to the protections of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act 
of 1964, as amended, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 
amended, prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color  
or national origin in programs or activities receiving Federal  
financial assistance. Employment discrimination is covered by  
Title VI if the primary objective of the financial assistance is  
provision of employment, or where employment discrimination 
causes or may cause discrimination in providing services under 
such programs. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 
prohibits employment discrimination on the basis of sex in  
educational programs or activities which receive Federal  
financial assistance.

Individuals with Disabilities
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended,  
prohibits employment discrimination on the basis of disability  
in any program or activity which receives Federal financial assistance. 
Discrimination is prohibited in all aspects of employment against 
persons with disabilities who, with or without reasonable  
accommodation, can perform the essential functions of the job.

If you believe you have been discriminated against in a program  
of any institution which receives Federal financial assistance,  
you should immediately contact the Federal agency providing 
such assistance.

(Revised 6/27/2023)



Conozca sus Derechos: 
La Discriminación en el Lugar de Trabajo es Ilegal

La Comisión Para la Igualdad de Oportunidades en el Empleo (EEOC, por sus siglas en inglés) de los EE. UU. 
hace cumplir las leyes federales que lo protegen contra la discriminación en el empleo. Si cree que ha sido 
discriminado(a) en el trabajo o al solicitar un trabajo, la EEOC puede ayudarle.

¿Quién está Protegido?
•   Empleados (actuales y anteri-

ores), incluyendo gerentes y
empleados temporales

•   Aplicantes de trabajo

•   Miembros de sindicatos y
Solicitantes de membresía
en un sindicato

¿Qué Tipos de Discriminación Laboral son 
 Ilegales?  

Según las leyes de la EEOC, un empleador no puede  
discriminarlo, independientemente de su estatus migratorio, 
por  motivos de:
•  Raza
•  Color
•  Religión
•  Origen nacional
•  Sexo (incluyendo embarazo,

parto, y condiciones médicas
relacionadas, orientación sex-
ual o identidad de gnero)

•  Edad (40 años o más)
•  Discapacidad
•  Información genética

(incluyendo solicitudes del
empleador para la compra,
el uso o la divulgación de
pruebas genéticas, servicios
genéticos o historial médico
familiar)

•  Tomar represalias por presen-
tar un cargo, oponerse razon-
ablemente a la discriminación
o participar en una demanda,
investigación o procedimiento
por discriminación

•  Interferencia, coerción o
amenazas relacionadas con
el ejercicio de los derechos
relacionados con la discrimi-
nación por discapacidad o la
acomodación por embarazo

¿Qué Organizaciones están Cubiertas?

•  La mayoría de los
empleadores privados

•  Gobiernos estatales y locales
(como empleadores)

•  Instituciones educativas
(como empleadores)

•  Sindicatos 
•  Agencias de empleo

¿Qué Prácticas Laborales Pueden ser 
 Discriminatorias?

Todos los aspectos del empleo, incluyendo:
• Despidos
•  Acoso (incluyendo conducta

física o verbal no deseada)
• Contratación o promoción
• Asignaciones
•  Remuneración (salarios

desiguales o compensación)
•  Falta de proporcionar adapta-

ciones razonables para una
discapacidad; embarazo,
parto o condición médica
relacionada al embarazo o
parto; o para la observancia
o práctica de una creencia
religiosa sincera

• Beneficios
• Formación profesional
• Clasificación
• Referencias

•  Obtención o divulgación de
información genética de los
empleados

•  Solicitud o divulgación de
información médica de los
empleados

•  Conducta que podría desalen-
tar razonablemente a alguien
de oponerse a la discrimi-
nación, presentar un cargo o
participar en una investigación
o procedimiento

•  Conducta que coaccione, intim-
ide, amenace o interfiera con
el ejercicio de sus derechos por 
parte de alguien, o alguien que
ayude o aliente a otra persona
a ejercer sus derechos, en rel-
ación con la discriminación por
discapacidad (incluyendo las
adaptaciones) o adaptaciones
por embarazo

¿Qué Puede Hacer si Cree que ha Ocurrido  Discriminación?

Comuníquese con la EEOC de inmediato si sospecha discriminación. No demore, porque existen límites de tiempo estrictos para  
presentar una denuncia por discriminación (180 o 300 días, según el lugar donde viva o trabaje). Puede comunicarse con la EEOC 
de cualquiera de las siguientes maneras:

Presentar    una consulta a través del Portal Público de la EEOC: 
https://publicportal.eeoc.gov/Portal/Login.aspx

Llame 1–800–669–4000 (número gratuito) 
1–800–669–6820 (TTY)  
1–844–234–5122 (Video Teléfono de ASL)

Visite    una Oficina de Campo de la EEOC (información en 
www.eeoc.gov/field-office)  

Corre Electrónico:   info@eeoc.gov 
Información adicional sobre la EEOC, incluyendo 
información sobre cómo presentar un cargo de 
 discriminación, está disponible en www.eeoc.gov/es.



EMPLEADORES QUE TIENEN CONTRATOS O SUBCONTRATOS FEDERALES

La Oficina de Programas de Cumplimiento de Contratos Federales 
(OFCCP, por sus siglas en inglés) del Departamento de Trabajo 
hace cumplir los compromisos de no discriminación y acción 
afirmativa de las empresas que hacen negocios con el gobierno 
federal. Si está solicitando un trabajo con, o es un empleado de 
una empresa con un contrato o subcontrato federal, usted está 
protegido(a) por la ley federal contra la discriminación en las 
siguientes bases:

Raza, Color, Religión, Sexo, Orientación Sexual, 
Identidad de Género, Origen Nacional  
La Orden Ejecutiva 11246, enmendada, prohíbe la discriminación 
laboral por parte de los contratistas federales por motivos de 
raza, color, religión, sexo, orientación sexual, identidad de género 
u origen nacional, y requiere acción afirmativa para garantizar la 
igualdad de oportunidades en todos los aspectos del empleo.

Preguntar, Divulgar o Discutir Salarios
La Orden Ejecutiva 11246, enmendada, protege a los solicitantes 
y empleados de contratistas federales de la discriminación basada 
en preguntar, divulgar o discutir su compensación o la compen-
sación de otros solicitantes o empleados.

Discapacidad 
La Sección 503 del Acta de Rehabilitación de 1973, según enmenda-
da, protege a las personas calificadas con discapacidades contra la 
discriminación en la contratación, promoción, despido, pago, ben-
eficios complementarios, capacitación laboral, clasificación, referen-
cias y otros aspectos del empleo por parte de contratistas federales. 
La discriminación por discapacidad incluye no hacer adaptaciones 
razonables a las limitaciones físicas o mentales conocidas de una 
persona con una discapacidad que de otro modo calificaría y que 
es un solicitante o empleado, a menos que haga una dificultad 
excesiva para el empleador. La Sección 503 también requiere que 
los contratistas federales tomen medidas afirmativas para emplear 
y promover a personas calificadas con discapacidades en todos los 
niveles de empleo, incluyendo a nivel ejecutivo.

Estatus Protegido Como Veterano 
El Acta de Asistencia para el Reajuste de los Veteranos de la Era de 
Vietnam de 1974, modificada, 38 U.S.C. 4212, prohíbe la discrimi-
nación laboral y requiere acción afirmativa para reclutar, emplear 
y avanzar en el empleo a veteranos discapacitados, veteranos 
recientemente separados (es decir, dentro de los tres años poste-
riores al su separación o liberación del servicio activo), veteranos 
en servicio activo en tiempo de guerra o insignia de campaña, o 
veteranos con medallas de servicio de las fuerzas armadas.

Represalias
Se prohíben las represalias contra una persona que presente una 
queja por discriminación, participe en un procedimiento de la 
OFCCP o se oponga a la discriminación por parte de contratistas 
federales en virtud de estas leyes federales.

Cualquier persona que crea que un contratista ha violado sus 
obligaciones de no discriminar o acción afirmativa bajo las autori-
dades de la OFCCP debe comunicarse de inmediato con:

La Oficina de Programas de Cumplimiento de Contratos Federales 
(OFCCP), 
Departamento de Trabajo de los EE. UU., 
200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20210
1-800-397-6251 (llamada gratuita). 

Si es sordo, tiene problemas de audición o tiene una discapaci-
dad del habla, marque 7-1-1 para acceder a los servicios de 
 retransmisión de telecomunicaciones. También se puede contac-
tar a la OFCCP enviando una pregunta en línea a la mesa de ayu-
da de la OFCCP en https://ofccphelpdesk.dol.gov/s/, o  llamando 
a una oficina regional o distrital de la OFCCP, que figura en la 
mayoría de los directorios telefónicos bajo el Departamento de 
Trabajo de los EE.UU y en la página web “Contáctenos” de la 
OFCCP en https://www.dol.gov/agencies/ofccp/contact.

PROGRAMAS O ACTIVIDADES QUE RECIBEN ASISTENCIA FINANCIERA FEDERAL

Raza, Color, Origen Nacional, Sexo
Además de las protecciones del Título VII del Acta de Derechos Ci-
viles de 1964, según enmendada, el Título VI del Acta de Derechos 
Civiles de 1964, según enmendada, prohíbe la discriminación por 
motivos de raza, color, u origen nacional en programas o activi-
dades que reciben asistencia financiera. La discriminación laboral 
está cubierta por el Título VI si el objetivo principal de la asistencia 
financiera es la provisión de empleo, o cuando la discriminación 
laboral cause o pueda causar discriminación en la prestación de 
servicios bajo dichos programas. El Título IX de las Enmiendas de 
Educación de 1972 prohíbe la discriminación laboral por razón de 
sexo en programas o actividades educativas que reciben asistencia 
financiera federal.

Personas con Discapacidades
La Sección 504 del Acta de Rehabilitación de 1973, enmendada, 
prohíbe la discriminación laboral por motivos de discapacidad en 
cualquier programa o actividad que reciba asistencia financiera 
federal. Está prohibida la discriminación en todos los aspectos de 
empleo contra las personas con discapacidades que, con o sin ajustes 
razonables, pueden desempeñar las funciones esenciales del trabajo.

Si cree que ha sido discriminado(a) en un programa de cualquier 
institución que recibe asistencia financiera federal, debe comunicarse 
de inmediato con la agencia federal que brinda dicha asistencia.

(Actualizado 6/27/2023)



Know Your Rights:
Workplace Discrimination is Illegal

The U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) enforces Federal laws that protect you from 
discrimination in employment. If you believe you’ve been discriminated against at work or in applying for a 
job, the EEOC may be able to help.

Who is Protected? 
• Employees (current and

former), including managers
and temporary employees

• Job applicants

• Union members and
applicants for membership
in a union

What Types of Employment Discrimination 
are Illegal? 
Under the EEOC’s laws, an employer may not discriminate against 
you, regardless of your immigration status, on the bases of:
• Race
• Color
• Religion
• National origin
• Sex (including pregnancy,

childbirth, and related
medical conditions,
sexual orientation, or
gender identity)

• Age (40 and older)
• Disability
• Genetic information

(including employer requests
for, or purchase, use, or
disclosure of genetic tests,
genetic services, or family
medical history)

• Retaliation for filing
a charge, reasonably
opposing discrimination,
or participating in a
discrimination lawsuit,
investigation, or proceeding

• Interference, coercion, or
threats related to exercising
rights regarding disability
discrimination or pregnancy
accommodation

What Organizations are Covered?
• Most private employers
• State and local governments

(as employers)

• Educational institutions
(as employers)

• Unions
• Staffing agencies

What Employment Practices can be Challenged 
as Discriminatory?
All aspects of employment, including:
• Discharge, firing, or lay-off
• Harassment (including

unwelcome verbal or
physical conduct)

• Hiring or promotion
• Assignment
• Pay (unequal wages or

compensation)
• Failure to provide reasonable

accommodation for a
disability; pregnancy,
childbirth, or related medical
condition; or a sincerely-held
religious belief, observance
or practice

• Benefits
• Job training
• Classification
• Referral

• Obtaining or disclosing
genetic information
of employees

• Requesting or disclosing
medical information
of employees

• Conduct that might
reasonably discourage
someone from opposing
discrimination, filing a
charge, or participating in an
investigation or proceeding

• Conduct that coerces,
intimidates, threatens, or 
interferes with someone
exercising their rights,
or someone assisting or 
encouraging someone else
to exercise rights, regarding
disability discrimination
(including accommodation) or 
pregnancy accommodation

What can You Do if You Believe Discrimination has Occurred?
Contact the EEOC promptly if you suspect discrimination. Do not delay, because there are strict time limits for filing a charge 
of discrimination (180 or 300 days, depending on where you live/work). You can reach the EEOC in any of the following ways:

Submit    an inquiry through the EEOC’s public portal: 
https://publicportal.eeoc.gov/Portal/Login.aspx

Call 1–800–669–4000 (toll free) 
1–800–669–6820 (TTY) 
1–844–234–5122 (ASL video phone)

Visit   an EEOC field office (information at 
www.eeoc.gov/field-office)  

E-Mail info@eeoc.gov

Additional information about the EEOC, 
including information about filing a charge of 
discrimination, is available at www.eeoc.gov.



EMPLOYERS HOLDING FEDERAL CONTRACTS OR SUBCONTRACTS

The Department of Labor’s Office of Federal Contract Compliance 
Programs (OFCCP) enforces the nondiscrimination and affirmative 
action commitments of companies doing business with the 
Federal Government. If you are applying for a job with, or are an 
employee of, a company with a Federal contract or subcontract, 
you are protected under Federal law from discrimination on the 
following bases:

Race, Color, Religion, Sex, Sexual Orientation, 
Gender Identity, National Origin 
Executive Order 11246, as amended, prohibits employment 
discrimination by Federal contractors based on race, color, 
religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin, 
and requires affirmative action to ensure equality of opportunity 
in all aspects of employment.

Asking About, Disclosing, or Discussing Pay
Executive Order 11246, as amended, protects applicants and 
employees of Federal contractors from discrimination based on 
inquiring about, disclosing, or discussing their compensation or 
the compensation of other applicants or employees.

Disability 
Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 
protects qualified individuals with disabilities from discrimination 
in hiring, promotion, discharge, pay, fringe benefits, job training, 
classification, referral, and other aspects of employment by 
Federal contractors. Disability discrimination includes not making 
reasonable accommodation to the known physical or mental 
limitations of an otherwise qualified individual with a disability 
who is an applicant or employee, barring undue hardship to the 
employer. Section 503 also requires that Federal contractors take 
affirmative action to employ and advance in employment qualified 
individuals with disabilities at all levels of employment, including 
the executive level. 

Protected Veteran Status
The Vietnam Era Veterans’ Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, 
as amended, 38 U.S.C. 4212, prohibits employment discrimination 
against, and requires affirmative action to recruit, employ, and 
advance in employment, disabled veterans, recently separated 
veterans (i.e., within three years of discharge or release from 
active duty), active duty wartime or campaign badge veterans, or 
Armed Forces service medal veterans.

Retaliation
Retaliation is prohibited against a person who files a complaint of 
discrimination, participates in an OFCCP proceeding, or otherwise 
opposes discrimination by Federal contractors under these 
Federal laws.

Any person who believes a contractor has violated its 
nondiscrimination or affirmative action obligations under OFCCP’s 
authorities should contact immediately:

The Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP) 
U.S. Department of Labor 
200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20210  
1–800–397–6251 (toll-free)

If you are deaf, hard of hearing, or have a speech disability, please 
dial 7–1–1 to access telecommunications relay services. OFCCP may 
also be contacted by submitting a question online to OFCCP’s Help 
Desk at https://ofccphelpdesk.dol.gov/s/, or by calling an OFCCP 
regional or district office, listed in most telephone directories under 
U.S. Government, Department of Labor and on OFCCP’s “Contact Us” 
webpage at https://www.dol.gov/agencies/ofccp/contact.

PROGRAMS OR ACTIVITIES RECEIVING FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Race, Color, National Origin, Sex
In addition to the protections of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act 
of 1964, as amended, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 
amended, prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or 
national origin in programs or activities receiving Federal finan-
cial assistance. Employment discrimination is covered by Title VI 
if the primary objective of the financial assistance is provision of 
employment, or where employment discrimination causes or may 
cause discrimination in providing services under such programs. 
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 prohibits employ-
ment discrimination on the basis of sex in educational programs 
or activities which receive Federal financial assistance.

Individuals with Disabilities
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, prohibits 
employment discrimination on the basis of disability in any program 
or activity which receives Federal financial assistance. Discrimination 
is prohibited in all aspects of employment against persons with 
disabilities who, with or without reasonable accommodation, can 
perform the essential functions of the job.

If you believe you have been discriminated against in a program 
of any institution which receives Federal financial assistance, you 
should immediately contact the Federal agency providing such 
assistance.

(Revised 6/27/2023)



PAY TRANSPARENCY
NONDISCRIMINATION PROVISION

The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate 

against employees or applicants because they have inquired about, 

discussed, or disclosed their own pay or the pay of another employee or 

applicant. However, employees who have access to the compensation 

information of other employees or applicants as a part of their essential 

job functions cannot disclose the pay of other employees or applicants to 

individuals who do not otherwise have access to compensation information, 

unless the disclosure is (a) in response to a formal complaint or charge, (b) 

in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an 

investigation conducted by the employer, or (c) consistent with the 

contractor’s legal duty to furnish information.

If you believe that you have experienced discrimination contact OFCCP
1.800.397.6251 | TTY 1.877.889.5627 | www.dol.gov/ofccp

200 CONSTITUTION AVENUE NW   WASHINGTON, DC 20210   tel: 1-800-397-6251   TTY: 1-877-889-5627   www.dol.gov/ofccp





This Organization 
Participates in E-Verify

This employer participates in E-Verify and will 
provide the federal government with your 
Form I-9 information to confirm that you are 
authorized to work in the U.S.  
If  E-Verify cannot confirm that you are 
authorized to work, this employer is required 
to give you written instructions and an 
opportunity to contact Department of  
Homeland Security (DHS) or Social Security 
Administration (SSA) so you can begin to 
resolve the issue before the employer can 
take any action against you, including 
terminating your employment. 
Employers can only use E-Verify once you 
have accepted a job offer and completed the 
Form I-9. 

E-Verify Works for Everyone

For more information on E-Verify, or if  
you believe that your employer has 
violated its E-Verify responsibilities, 

please contact DHS. 

Esta Organización 
Participa en E-Verify

Este empleador participa en E-Verify y proporcionará 
al gobierno federal la información de su Formulario I-9 
para confirmar que usted está autorizado para trabajar 
en los EE.UU.. 
Si E-Verify no puede confirmar que usted está 
autorizado para trabajar, este empleador está 
requerido a darle instrucciones por escrito y una 
oportunidad de contactar al Departamento de 
Seguridad Nacional (DHS) o a la Administración del 
Seguro Social (SSA) para que pueda empezar a 
resolver el problema antes de que el empleador pueda 
tomar cualquier acción en su contra, incluyendo la 
terminación de su empleo. 
Los empleadores sólo pueden utilizar E-Verify una vez 
que usted haya aceptado una oferta de trabajo y 
completado el Formulario I-9. 

E-Verify Funciona Para Todos

Para más información sobre E-Verify, o si 
usted cree que su empleador ha violado 
sus responsabilidades de E-Verify, por 

favor contacte a DHS. 

888-897-7781
dhs.gov/e-verify

English / Spanish Poster 



IFYOU HAVETHE RIGHT TOWORK 

DON’T LET ANYONE TAKE IT AWAY    
If you have the skills, experience, and legal right 

to work, your citizenship or immigration status 
shouldn’t get in the way. Neither should the 

place you were born or another aspect of your 
national origin. A part of U.S. immigration laws 
protects legally-authorized workers from discri-
mination based on their citizenship status and  
national origin. You can read this law at 
8 U.S.C. § 1324b. 
The Immigrant and Employee Rights Section 
(IER) may be able to help if an employer treats 
you unfairly in violation of this law. 

(The law that IER enforces is 8 U.S.C. § 1324b. The 
regulations for this law are at 28 C.F.R. Part 44. 

Call IER if an employer: 
Does not hire you or fires you because of your 
national origin or citizenship status (this may 
violate a part of the law at 
8 U.S.C. § 1324b(a)(1)) 
Treats you unfairly while checking your right to 
work in the U.S., including while completing the 
Form I-9 or using E-Verify (this may violate the 
law at 8 U.S.C. § 1324b(a)(1) or (a)(6)) 
Retaliates against you because you are speaking 
up for your right to work as protected by this law 

the law prohibits retaliation at 
8 U.S.C. § 1324b(a)(5)) 

The law can be complicated. Call IER to get more 
information on protections from discrimination 
based on citizenship status and national origin. 

Immigrant and Employee Rights Section (IER) 
1-800-255-7688 TTY 1-800-237-2515 
www.justice.gov/ier 
IER@usdoj.gov 

U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Immigrant 
and Employee Rights Section, January 2019 

This guidance document is not intended to be a final agency action, has no legally binding effect, and has no force or effect of law. The document may be rescinded or
modified at the Department’s discretion, in accordance with applicable laws. The Department’s guidance documents, including this guidance, do not establish legally
enforceable responsibilities beyond what is required by the terms of the applicable statutes, regulations, or binding judicial precedent. For more information, see 
“Memorandum for All Components: Prohibition of Improper Guidance Documents,” from Attorney General Jefferson B. Sessions III, November 16, 2017. 

https://www.justice.gov/crt/8-usc-1324b-unfair-immigration-related-employment-practices
https://www.justice.gov/crt/immigrant-and-employee-rights-section
https://www.uscis.gov/i-9-central
https://www.e-verify.gov/
http://www.justice.gov/ier
mailto:IER@usdoj.gov


SI USTED TIENE DERECHO A TRABAJAR 

NO DEJE QUE NADIE SE LO QUITE 
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S i usted dispone de las capacidades, experiencia y 
derecho legal a trabajar, su estatus migratorio o de
ciudadanía no debe representar un obstáculo, ni 

tampoco lo debe ser el lugar en que usted nació o
ningún otro aspecto de su nacionalidad de origen. 
Existe una parte de las leyes migratorias de los EE. UU. 
que protegen a los trabajadores que cuentan con la
debida autorización legal para trabajar de la  
discriminación por motivos de su estatus de  
ciudadanía o nacionalidad de origen. Puede consultar
esta ley contenida en la Sección 1324b del Título 8 del 
Código de los EE. UU. 
Es posible que la Sección de Derechos de Inmigrantes 
y Empleados (IER, por sus siglas en inglés)  pueda
ayudar si un empleador lo trata de una forma  injusta, 
en contra de esta ley. 
La ley que hace cumplir la IER es la Sección 1324b del
Título 8 del Código de los EE. UU. Los reglamentos de 
dicha ley se encuentran en la Parte 44 del Título 28 del
Código de Reglamentos Federales. 

Llame a la IER si un empleador: 
No lo contrata o lo despide a causa de su 

nacionalidad de origen o estatus de ciudadanía (esto
podría representar una vulneración de parte de la ley
contenida en la Sección 1324b(a)(1) del Título 8 del
Código de los EE. UU.) 
Lo trata de una manera injusta a la forma de  
comprobar su derecho a trabajar en los EE. UU.,
incluyendo al completar el Formulario I-9 o utilizar 
E-Verify (esto podría representar una vulneración de
la ley contenida en la Sección 1324b(a)(1) o (a)(6) del 
Título 8 del Código de los EE. UU.) 
Toma represalias en su contra por haber defendido
su derecho a trabajar al amparo de esta ley (la ley  
prohíbe las represalias, según se indica en la Sección  
1324b(a)(5) del Título 8 del Código de los EE. UU.) 

Esta ley puede ser complicada. Llame a la IER para más 
información sobre las protecciones existentes contra la 
discriminación por motivos del estatus de ciudadanía o 
la nacionalidad de origen. 

Sección de Derechos de Inmigrantes y Empleados (IER) 

1-800-255-7688 TTY 1-800-237-2515 
www.justice.gov/crt-espanol/ier 

IER@usdoj.gov 

Departamento de Justicia de los EE. UU., División de Derechos 
Civiles, Sección de Derechos de Inmigrantes y Empleados,
enero del 2019 

Este documento de orientación no tiene como propósito ser una decisión definitiva por parte de la agencia, no tiene ningún efecto jurídicamente vinculante y puede ser
rescindido o modificado a la discreción del Departamento, conforme a las leyes aplicables. Los documentos de orientación del Departamento, entre ellos este documento de  
orientación, no establecen responsabilidades jurídicamente vinculantes más allá de lo que se requiere en los términos de las leyes aplicables, los reglamentos o los
precedentes jurídicamente vinculantes. Para más información, véase «Memorándum para Todos Los Componentes: La Prohibición contra Documentos de Orientación
Impropias», del Fiscal General Jefferson B. Sessions III, 16 de noviembre del 2017. 

https://www.justice.gov/crt/8-usc-1324b-unfair-immigration-related-employment-practices
https://www.justice.gov/crt/8-usc-1324b-unfair-immigration-related-employment-practices
https://www.justice.gov/crt-espanol/ier
https://www.uscis.gov/es/central-I-9
https://www.e-verify.gov/es
https://www.justice.gov/crt-espanol/ier
mailto:IER@usdoj.gov
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